1950

Ruth Elizabeth Holt Craven v. Kenneth D. Craven : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant, Kenneth D. Craven, is a married man residing in Provo, Utah.

Plaintiff, the former wife of defendant, together with Robert Holt Craven, a minor son of plaintiff and defendant, resides in Salt Lake City, Utah.

On or about the 10th day of June, 1949, the plaintiff caused to be filed in the Fourth Judicial District Court a petition entitled "Motion for Order to Show Cause" which, omitting the formal portions thereof and the prayer, reads as follows:

1. That on the 16th day of April, 1945, the Court made and entered its decree in the above entitled action wherein plaintiff was granted a divorce from the defendant and was likewise given the care, custody and control of the minor child, Robert Holt Craven, and whereby the defendant was ordered to pay for the care, maintenance and support of said child the sum of \$25.00 per month, to commence on the 1st day of May, 1945.
2. That at the same time the above-entitled decree was issued the aforesaid minor child was an infant of the age of fifteen months, and that at the present time the minor child is of the age of 5 years and 4 months.
3. That this plaintiff has no funds with which to support the said infant at this time and is wholly de-

pendent upon the moneys paid by the defendant for the support of said infant.

4. That the said defendant is an architect with a place of business at Provo, Utah, is gainfully employed, and the owner and in possession of various real property, automobiles, cash and other personal property, the exact value and location of which is unknown to the plaintiff, but which is known to the defendant herein.

5. That since the aforesaid decree of divorce was issued, the child of the parties has grown from infancy to the age of five years and four months, with the result that he requires much more food, clothing and medical care; furthermore, that since the date of the aforesaid decree there has been a great increase in the price of food, clothing, housing accommodations and all other items which are necessary for the proper care and support of said infant.

6. That in consequence thereof, the \$25.00 a month paid by the defendant to the plaintiff for the support of said minor child is no longer adequate for the support of said minor child, but that the plaintiff herein is required to expend the sum of \$50.00 per month for the support of said child; that said sum is necessary for the proper support, nutrition and care of said child.

7. That the plaintiff herein has found it necessary to engage the services of an attorney to petition this Court to modify the original decree herein; that the plaintiff herein is entitled to reimbursement by

the defendant for the attorney fee incurred herein; that the plaintiff is obligated to her attorney for a reasonable attorney fee for his services herein.

The matter came on to be heard before the court on the 27th day of August, 1949. The defendant was present and was represented by counsel, but filed no formal pleadings. However, counsel for the defendant, at the opening of plaintiff's evidence, demurred to the plaintiff's petition on the ground that the petition did not allege facts sufficient to warrant a modification of the decree (TR-3). The court overruled defendant's demurrer (TR-7).

At the conclusion of the hearing the defendant moved the court to dismiss the petition on the ground and for the reason that the evidence adduced by the plaintiff did not prove facts sufficient to warrant a modification of the original decree. Said motion was denied by the court.

Thereafter on the 21st day of September, 1949, the court made and entered its Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order of Modification which, omitting the formal parts, are as follows:

FINDING OF FACT

1. That on the 16th day of April, 1945, the court made and entered its decree in the above-entitled action wherein plaintiff was granted a divorce from the defendant, was likewise given the care, custody

and control of the minor child, Robert Holt Craven, and whereby the defendant was ordered to pay for the care, maintenance and support of said child the sum of \$25.00 per month, to commence on the 1st day of May, 1945.

2. That at the time the above-mentioned decree was issued the aforesaid minor child was an infant of the age of fifteen months, and that at the present time the minor child is of the age of 5 years and 8 months.

3. That this plaintiff has no funds with which to support the said infant at this time and is wholly dependant upon the moneys paid by the defendant for the support of the said infant.

4. That the conditions under which the court based its original decree and the amount of payment of money for the support of the said minor child have changed in the following particulars:

A. The defendant is now employed as an estimator and draftsman in architectural work and is earning a substantial income.

B. The minor child of the parties is now five years and eight months old and is about to enter school; and

C. The necessities of the child for clothing, food, education and care have materially increased in cost, due both to the growth of the child and to a general increase of prices of such items.

5. That there is needed for the care and support of

the child at present the sum of \$35.00 per month until the child actually enters school and \$50.00 per month after the said child enters school.

6. That the plaintiff herein has found it necessary to engage the services of an attorney to petition this court to modify the original decree herein; that the plaintiff herein is entitled to reimbursement by the defendant for the attorney fee incurred herein; that a reasonable fee for the hearings had herein and services performed in connection herewith is \$100.00; that plaintiff is obligated to her attorney in the amount of \$100.00 for the services herein.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

As conclusions of law from the foregoing findings of fact, the court concludes:

1. That the plaintiff is entitled to an order of this court modifying the original decree herein so as to provide that the defendant shall pay to the plaintiff as support money for the minor child of the parties the sum of \$35.00 per month until such time as the said child enters school and \$50.00 per month thereafter and until further order of this court.
2. That the plaintiff is entitled to an order of this court directing the defendant to pay to her the sum of \$100.00 for attorney's fees in this action.
3. That the plaintiff is entitled to be reimbursed by the defendant for her costs in this action.

ORDER OF MODIFICATION

NOW, THEREFORE by reason of the Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of law aforesaid, it is hereby ordered, adjudged and decreed:

1. That the original decree herein be modified so as to provide that the defendant be ordered to pay, and is hereby ordered to pay to the plaintiff for the support of the minor child of the parties the sum of \$35.00 per month until such times as the said child enters school, and thereupon and thereafter the sum of \$50.00 per month until the further order of this court.

2. The defendant is hereby ordered to pay the plaintiff the sum of \$100.00 for her attorney's fees in this action and her costs in this action in the amount of \$21.10; and that furthermore the said costs and attorney's fees shall be paid within 30 days from the date of the service upon the defendant of this order.

On or about the 21st day of September, 1949, the defendant filed his Notice of Motion for New Trial (JR-37). The Motion for new trial was heard by the Honorable William Stanley Dunford and on the 27th day of October, 1949, the court denied the motion (JR-44).

Thereafter defendant filed and served his Notice of Appeal (JR-57), and perfected his appeal to the court.

The evidence adduced at the hearing shows that on or about the 16th day of April, 1945, the plaintiff was granted a divorce from the defendant and she was awarded the care, custody and control of Robert Holt Craven,

minor son of the plaintiff and the defendant, and that the defendant was ordered to pay the plaintiff, for the support and maintenance of said child the sum of \$25.00 per month (JR-13).