1950

# Ruth Elizabeth Holt Craven v. Kenneth D. Craven : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In his brief, appellant attacks the respondent's petition for modification. This he has set out in full at pages 2, 3, and 4 of his brief. He also attacks the adequacy of the evidence to support certain of the Findings of Fact, the Conclusions of Law, and the Order of Modification. He has set out the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and

Order of Modification in full on pages 4, 5, 6, and 7 of his brief. He has detailed certain of the facts on pages 7, 8, 9, and 10 of his brief.

Respondent feels that it is necessary to detail the key facts for the court. Respondent contends these show considerable changes in the circumstances governing the amount of support money to be allowed. According to Finding of Fact No. 11 in the Findings in the original divorce matter herein, at the time the divorce was granted, appellant was unemployed. Appellant claims that the record (at Tr. 28, 29) shows that there is no change in circumstances between the time of the original divorce decree and the time of the trial of this matter. However, according to the respondent's testimony upon cross examination upon which appellant relies (i. e. at Tr. 28) respondent *refused* to admit that there was *no change* in the circumstances of appellant's employment between the time of the original decree and the date of the modification hearing.

At the time of the divorce the appellant was still paying for his home (Tr. 86), whereas it is now paid for (Tr. 85). Furthermore the testimony shows that appellant's elder son is now 21 years old (Tr. 82), whereas he had obviously been in his minority at time of the decree.

The testimony as to the appellant's income during the 7.8 month period preceeding the hearing on the petition for modification was not \$212.50 per month as contended by the appellant, but was actually between \$283.00 and \$380.00 per month. This appears, from an examination of respondent's Exhibit "A", which was appellant's checking account

It further appeared that nothing had been withdrawn from appellant's savings account since May 28, 1948 (Tr. 10) which would indicate the adequacy of appellant's income for his own support since that date.

In his statement of Facts, appellant claims that the child was not of school age at the time of the hearing, however, the testimony was that respondent expected to enter the child in school in the near future (Tr. 22). When respondent's testimony as to what it cost her per month for the care of the child is added up, it appears she must spend approximately \$86.74 a month for the care of the child (Tr. 21 through 27), which is considerably more than she spent for the care of the child at the time of the original divorce decree, i. e. \$25.00 per month (Tr. 17 and 40). A summary of her testimony on this point shows the following:

Food and tending (Tr. 21) per month	\$30.00
Clothing (Tr. 21), last 6 months	\$93.65
next 6 months	84.60
Minimum average per month	14.10
Medical and dental care (Tr. 24)	
Past 6 months	\$146.00
Average per month	24.33
Insurance (Tr. 25) per month	3.40
Toys (Tr. 26) per year, \$80.00—per month	6.66
Amusement (Tr. 27) per month	5.00
Haircuts and medicines (Tr. 27)	3.25
Total	\$86.74



The child was 15 months old and still a babe in arms at the time of the divorce decree (Tr. 14, 16) but was 5 years 8 months old at the time Trial Court entered its decision herein.

Evidence that an inflation had occurred in the price of items needed for children was offered in detail by Mr. Taylor (Tr. 44, 45, and 46) and Mr. Pace (Tr. 37 through 65).

No proof was offered at any time tending in any way to show that appellant was unable to pay the increased award ordered by the trial court.

## FINDINGS OF FACT

### CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECREE

The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order of Modification have been set out in full by the appellant on pages 4, 5, 6, 7, of his brief. These Findings are well supported by the evidence, and conclusions based upon them to the effect that an increase should be made in the support money allowance, and the order based thereon, are well supported by, and in complete harmony with, the law.

## ARGUMENT

1. THE RESPONDENT'S PETITION FOR MODIFICATION ALLEGED THREE IMPORTANT MATERIAL CHANGES IN CIRCUMSTANCES WARRANTING A MODIFICATION OF THE DECREE; NAMELY, THE

CHANGE IN AGE AND THE GROWTH OF THE CHILD, THE GENERAL INFLATION IN PRICES OF ITEMS NECESSARY FOR THE CHILD, AND LASTLY THE FACT THAT THE APPELLANT WAS EMPLOYED AT THE DATE OF THE FILING OF THE PETITION.

Respondent alleged (in Par. 5 of her Petition) that since the decree of divorce was issued, the child of the parties had grown from infancy (fifteen months) to the age of five years and four months, with the result that he required much more food, clothing and medical care; furthermore, that since the date of the decree there had been a great increase in the price of food, clothing, housing accommodations and all other items necessary for the proper care and support of the infant; that in consequence, Respondent now needs \$50.00 per month to care for the child (Paragraph of Respondent's Petition).

Respondent further alleged (in Par. 4 of her Petition) that Appellant is now gainfully employed, which contrasts with finding of fact number 11 of the original divorce proceedings.

This question has been dealt with by the Court in numerous previous cases. The authority to modify a divorce decree is contained in *Section 40-3-5 U. C. A. 1943* as follows:

“Disposition of Property and Children.

“When a decree of divorce is made the court may make such orders in relation to the children, property and parties, and the maintenance of the parties and children, as may be equitable; provided,

that if any of the children have attained the age of ten years and are of sound mind, such children shall have the privilege of selecting the parent to which they will attach themselves. Such subsequent changes or new orders may be made by the court with respect to the disposal of the children or the distribution of property as shall be reasonable and proper."

The rule as to pleading has been stated as follows in *Cody vs. Cody*, 47 Utah 456, 154 P. 952: